# "Simple" Corner-Edge Asymptotics

# MONIQUE DAUGE

**Abstract.** I try to describe the Corner-Edge Asymptotics in a polyhedral cone in the simplest way possible. You may argue that this is still involved, but nature is as it is... The French version of my title could be, with reference to a well known series of computer books and with certain humor, "Les asymptotiques coins-arêtes pour les Nuls".

# **CONTENTS**

1.	Geometry, coordinates	2
2.	The operator and its reduced forms at edge and corner	4
3.	Mellin symbols at edge and corner	5
4.	Corner asymptotics	6
5.	Edge asymptotics	7
6.	Expansion of the corner spherical singular functions	8
7.	Edge expansion of the corner remainder	9
8.	Corner expansion of the edge coefficients	10
9.	Corner-edge and edge-corner expansions of the solution	11
10.	What is the strongest singularity?	12
11.	Neumann boundary conditions	13
12.	Without simplifications	14

# **1. GEOMETRY, COORDINATES**



Let C be a cone in  $\mathbb{R}^3$  with corner c. Let  $G \subset \mathbb{S}^2$  be the section of C, i.e. the intersection of C with the unit sphere  $\mathbb{S}^2$  centered in c. We assume that the boundary of G is smooth, except in one point, a, that we will call "the angular point" of G. This means that the cone C has one edge e which is the ray originating in c and going through a.

We assume that in a conical neighborhood of e, the cone C coincides with a wedge<sup>\*</sup> W, which means that there exists a neighborhood  $V_a$  of a in  $\mathbb{S}^2$  such that in the cone  $V_e$  defined as the union of the rays originating in c and going through any point of  $V_a$ , there holds

$$C \cap V_e = W \cap V_e$$
.

Let  $\omega$  be the opening of the wedge W.

We choose *Cartesian coordinates*  $\mathbf{x} = (x, y, z)$  such that:

- the point (0, 0, 0) is c,
- the half-line  $\{(0,0,z), z > 0\}$  is the edge e,
- the half-plane  $\{(x, 0, z), x > 0, z \in \mathbb{R}\}$  is a side of the wedge W.

The associated cylindrical coordinates are  $(r, \theta, z)$  where  $r = \sqrt{x^2 + y^2}$  and the angle  $\theta$  is chosen such that  $\theta = 0$  is the equation of the half-line  $\{(x, 0), x > 0\}$  in the (x, y) plane. The wedge W is described in cylindrical coordinates as

$$\mathrm{W}=\{(x,y,z)\mid \ \ r>0,\ heta\in(0,\omega),\ z\in\mathbb{R}\}.$$

The associated *spherical coordinates* are  $(\rho, \vartheta)$  where  $\rho = \sqrt{x^2 + y^2 + z^2}$ . Here  $\vartheta$  denotes any coordinate system in  $\mathbb{S}^2$ . In the neighborhood  $V_e$  of e, we may define the homogeneous (with respect to  $\rho$ ) coordinates X, Y and R by

$$X=rac{x}{
ho}, \quad Y=rac{y}{
ho} \quad ext{and} \quad R=rac{r}{
ho}=\sqrt{X^2+Y^2}\,.$$

We note that in the neighborhood  $V_a$  of a, the couple (X, Y) can be taken as coordinate system for  $\vartheta$ .

The cone C is described in spherical coordinates as

$$\mathrm{C}=\{(x,y,z)\mid \ 
ho>0, \ artheta\in G\}.$$

Finally, let  $\kappa > 0$  be such that the cone defined as  $\{(x, y, z), r < \kappa \rho\}$  is contained in the conical neighborhood V<sub>e</sub>.

We end this series of definitions by the notation B(c, T) for the ball centered in c with radius T.

<sup>\*</sup>A wedge, or dihedron, is a three-dimensional domain which coincides with the product of an infinite plane sector by  $\mathbb{R}$ .

#### **2.** The operator and its reduced forms at edge & corner

Although any strongly elliptic system L in AGMON-DOUGLIS-NIRENBERG sense with constant coefficients could be considered, we treat for simplicity the case when Lis a system of operators of degree 2 without lower order terms. We write

$$L = L(\partial_x, \partial_y, \partial_z).$$

The edge singularities along e will be generated by the non-tangential part of L, i.e. the operator obtained from L by removing the derivatives  $\partial_z$  which are tangential along the edge. Thus we define

$$L_{ ext{e}}:=L(\partial_x,\partial_y,0)$$
 .

We also need to write  $L_e$  in polar coordinates  $(r, \theta)$ . There exists an operator  $\mathscr{L}_e$  of degree 2 with coefficients depending smoothly on  $\theta$  only such that

$$L_{\mathrm{e}}(\partial_x,\partial_y)=r^{-2}\mathscr{L}_{\mathrm{e}}( heta;r\partial_r,\partial_ heta)\,.$$

The associated symbol is  $\mathbb{C} \ni \alpha \longmapsto \mathscr{L}_{e}(\theta; \alpha, \partial_{\theta})$ , see §3.

The corner singularities are related to the full operator L that we write in spherical coordinates as

$$L(\partial_x,\partial_y,\partial_z)=
ho^{-2}\mathscr{L}_{\mathrm{c}}(artheta;
ho\partial_
ho,\partial_artheta)\,,$$

with a second order operator  $\mathscr{L}_{c}$  with smooth coefficients depending on  $\vartheta \in G$ . We have advantage to write  $\mathscr{L}_{c}$  in the special fitted coordinates  $(\rho, X, Y)$  in the conical neighborhood  $V_{e}$ , which yields:

$$L(\partial_x, \partial_y, \partial_z) = \rho^{-2} \mathscr{L}_{\mathrm{c}}(X, Y; \rho \partial_\rho, \partial_X, \partial_Y).$$

The associated symbol is  $\mathbb{C} \ni \lambda \longmapsto \mathscr{L}_{c}(X, Y; \lambda, \partial_{X}, \partial_{Y})$ , see §3.

For any complex number  $\lambda$ , the operator  $\mathscr{L}_{c}(X, Y; \lambda, \partial_{X}, \partial_{Y})$  acts on G, which has the angular point **a**. The operator  $M_{a}$  which will determine its singularities at **a** is defined as

$$M_{\rm a}(\partial_X,\partial_Y) =$$
principal part  $\{\mathscr{L}_{\rm c}(0,0;0,\partial_X,\partial_Y)\}$ 

There holds

**Lemma 2.1** The homogeneous operators of degree 2 with constant coefficients  $M_a$  and  $L_e$  coincide with each other.

The lemma results from the formula

$$(\partial_X,\partial_Y,
ho\partial_
ho)=
ho(\partial_x,\partial_y,\partial_z)+\mathscr{O}\left(r
ight), \ \ r o 0,$$

where  $\mathcal{O}(r)$  means operators of first order in  $\partial_x$ ,  $\partial_y$ ,  $\partial_z$  with coefficients  $a_j(\mathbf{x})$  such that  $r^{-1+|\beta|}\partial_x^\beta a_j(\mathbf{x})$  is bounded for any j and  $\beta$ .

# **3.** Mellin symbols at edge and corner

Let us consider the Dirichlet boundary conditions for L.

The associated Mellin symbol  $\mathfrak{M}_{\mathbf{e}}$  at the edge  $\mathbf{e}$  is the operator valued function  $\mathbb{C} \ni \alpha \longmapsto \mathfrak{M}_{\mathbf{e}}(\alpha)$  where  $\mathfrak{M}_{\mathbf{e}}(\alpha)$  is defined as

$$\mathfrak{M}_{\mathbf{e}}(\alpha) : \mathbf{H}_{0}^{1}(0,\omega) \longrightarrow \mathbf{H}^{-1}(0,\omega)$$
$$\varphi \longmapsto \mathscr{L}_{\mathbf{e}}(\theta;\alpha,\partial_{\theta})\varphi.$$
(3.1)

The associated Mellin symbol  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}$  at the corner c is the operator valued function  $\mathbb{C} \ni \lambda \longmapsto \mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)$  where  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)$  is defined as

$$\mathfrak{M}_{\mathbf{c}}(\lambda) : \mathrm{H}_{0}^{1}(G) \longrightarrow \mathrm{H}^{-1}(G)$$
$$\psi \longmapsto \mathscr{L}_{\mathbf{c}}(X, Y; \lambda, \partial_{X}, \partial_{Y})\psi.$$
(3.2)

The operator valued functions  $\alpha \mapsto \mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)^{-1}$  and  $\lambda \mapsto \mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)^{-1}$  are meromorphic in  $\mathbb{C}$  with finite dimensional polar part. Let  $\mathfrak{A}$  and  $\mathfrak{L}$  be respectively the sets of their poles. As a consequence of the ellipticity of L, any strip  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha \in [\xi_0, \xi_1]$  contains at most a finite number of elements of  $\mathfrak{A}$  and any strip  $\operatorname{Re} \lambda \in [\eta_0, \eta_1]$  contains at most a finite number of elements of  $\mathfrak{L}$ .

**Hypothesis 3.1** We assume for simplicity that the poles of  $\alpha \mapsto \mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)^{-1}$  and  $\lambda \mapsto \mathfrak{M}_{e}(\lambda)^{-1}$  are simple.

The index of the operators  $\mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)$  and  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)$  is independent of  $\alpha$  and  $\lambda$ , thus is 0. Therefore  $\mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)$  and  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)$  are invertible if and only if their kernels are  $\{0\}$ .

**Definition 3.2** For  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$ , we call multiplicity of  $\alpha$  the dimension of ker  $\mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)$ and we make the convention that we repeat  $\alpha$  in  $\mathfrak{A}$  according to its multiplicity, which allows for defining bases of ker  $\mathfrak{M}_{e}(\alpha)$  by simply indexing them by  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$ , and similarly for  $\lambda \in \mathfrak{L}$ . We denote these bases

 $\varphi[\alpha], \ \alpha \in \mathfrak{A} \quad \text{and} \quad \psi[\lambda], \ \lambda \in \mathfrak{L}.$ 

#### **4. CORNER ASYMPTOTICS**

We are interested in the structure of any u satisfying

$$\forall T > 0, \ u \in \mathrm{H}^{1}(\mathrm{C} \cap \mathrm{B}(0,T)), \ u \big|_{\partial \mathrm{C}} = 0, \ Lu = f \text{ with } f \in \mathscr{C}^{\infty}(\overline{\mathrm{C}}).$$
(4.1)  
Any solution  $u$  of (4.1) is  $\mathscr{C}^{\infty}(\mathrm{C})$ , i.e.  $\mathscr{C}^{\infty}$  inside C, and we are interested in its structure as  $\mathbf{x} \to \mathbf{c}$ , and in particular in the neighborhood of the edge e.

**Hypothesis 4.1** We assume for simplicity that  $f \equiv 0$  in B(c, 1).

Under Hypotheses 3.1 and 4.1, there exist <u>coefficients</u>  $c_{\lambda} \in \mathbb{C}$  for any  $\lambda \in \mathfrak{L}$  with  $\operatorname{Re} \lambda > -\frac{1}{2}$  such that  $u \sim \sum_{-\frac{1}{2} < \operatorname{Re} \lambda} c_{\lambda} \rho^{\lambda} \psi[\lambda](\vartheta)$  in the sense of asymptotic expansions as  $\rho \to 0$ , which means that for any  $\eta > -\frac{1}{2}$  there holds

$$\boldsymbol{u} = \sum_{-\frac{1}{2} < \operatorname{Re} \lambda < \eta} c_{\lambda} \rho^{\lambda} \psi[\lambda](\vartheta) + \boldsymbol{u}_{\operatorname{rem,c}}^{\eta}$$
(4.2)

Here the <u>remainder</u>  $u_{\text{rem,c}}^{\eta} = u_{\text{rem,c}}^{\eta}(\rho, \vartheta)$  satisfies<sup>†</sup> for all  $\vartheta$  fixed in G

$$\sup_{\rho \in (0,1]} \rho^{-\eta} |u_{\text{rem},c}^{\eta}(\rho,\vartheta)| < \infty.$$
(4.3)

This means that, roughly,  $u_{\text{rem,c}}^{\eta}(\rho, \vartheta)$  is a  $\mathcal{O}(\rho^{\eta})$  as  $\rho \to 0$ , but be careful about the fact that the sup in (4.3) depends on  $\vartheta \in G$  and may blow up as  $\vartheta \to a$ .

Thus, expansion (4.2) does not yield any extra regularity along the edge e.

**Remark 4.2** Expansion (4.2) has the simplest possible expression due to the <u>homogeneity</u> of the operator L. If L has lower order terms, the asymptotics contains supplementary "shadow" terms and has the more complicated form:

$$\boldsymbol{u} = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\,\lambda > -1/2 \\ \operatorname{Re}\,\lambda + n < \eta}} \sum_{\substack{n \in \mathbb{N} \\ n \in \lambda + n < \eta}} c_{\lambda} \rho^{\lambda + n} \psi_{n}[\lambda](\vartheta) + u^{\eta}_{\operatorname{rem}, c}.$$
(4.4)

*Here*  $\mathbb{N}$  *is the French notation for the set of non-negative integers*  $\{0, 1, 2, ...\}$  *and*  $\psi_0[\lambda] = \psi[\lambda]$ .

$$\sup_{\rho\,\in\,(0,1]}\rho^{-\eta+k}\big|\partial^k_\rho u^\eta_{\mathrm{rem\,,\,c}}(\rho,\vartheta)\big|<\infty\,.$$

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>†</sup>(4.3) can be differentiated with respect to  $\rho$ , i.e. for any integer  $k \in \mathbb{N}$ , we have

#### **5. EDGE ASYMPTOTICS**

First note that we may take  $\rho$  as the variable along the edge e, since z coincides with  $\rho$  on e. We make the further hypothesis

**Hypothesis 5.1** We assume for simplicity that for all  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$  with positive real part and all positive integer n > 0, the complex number  $\alpha + n$  does not belong to  $\mathfrak{A}$ .

Under Hypotheses 3.1, 4.1 and 5.1, there exist <u>functions</u> defined on  $e, \rho \mapsto d_{\alpha}(\rho)$  for any  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$  with  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha > 0$  such that for any  $\xi > 0$  there holds in the conical neighborhood  $V_e$ :

$$\boldsymbol{u} = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha > 0 \\ \operatorname{Re}\alpha + n < \xi}} \sum_{\substack{n \in \mathbb{N} \\ \operatorname{Re}\alpha + n < \xi}} \partial_{\rho}^{n} d_{\alpha}(\rho) \ r^{\alpha + n} \varphi_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + u_{\operatorname{rem}, e}^{\xi}$$
(5.1)

Here the angular functions  $\varphi_0[\alpha]$  are the original  $\varphi[\alpha]$  and for  $n \geq 1$ , the  $\varphi_n[\alpha]$  are constructed from the  $\varphi[\alpha]$  by recurrence. On the other hand, the remainder  $u_{\text{rem,e}}^{\xi}$  satisfies for all z fixed in  $(0, 1]^{\ddagger}$ 

$$\sup_{\substack{\mathbf{r} \in (0,\kappa\rho]\\ \theta \in [0,\omega]}} r^{-\xi} \left| u_{\text{rem,e}}^{\xi}(x,y,z) \right| < \infty \,. \tag{5.2}$$

The positive constant  $\kappa$  is that introduced in §1.

Thus, roughly,  $u_{\text{rem,e}}^{\xi}(x, y, z)$  is a  $\mathscr{O}(r^{\xi})$  depending on  $z \in e$  as  $r \to 0$ , but the above sup is a function of z which may blow up as  $z \to 0$ , i.e. as  $x \to c$ .

The coefficients  $d_{\alpha}$  are the edge coefficients, or *Stress Intensity Factors*, but the expansion (5.1) does not yield any extra regularity at the corner c.

**Remark 5.2** The structure of the asymptotics (5.1) has the same level of complexity as the generalized expansion (4.4), because the operator L is not homogeneous with respect to the only variables (x, y). The "shadow" terms  $\varphi_n[\alpha]$  come from the terms containing derivatives  $\partial_z$  in L.

$$\sup_{\substack{r\in (0,\kappa
ho]\ heta\in [0,\omega]}} r^{-\xi+|eta|} ig| \partial^eta_{x,y} u^\xi_{ ext{rem\,, e}}(x,y,z) ig| < \infty\,.$$

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>‡</sup>(5.2) can be differentiated with respect to (x, y), i.e. for any multi-index  $\beta \in \mathbb{N}^2$ , we have

#### **6.** EXPANSION OF THE CORNER SPHERICAL SINGULAR FUNCTIONS

The corner spherical singular functions  $\psi[\lambda]$  are solutions of the Dirichlet problem in G

$$\psi\in \mathrm{H}^1_0(G), \quad \mathscr{L}_{\mathrm{c}}(X,Y;\lambda,\partial_X,\partial_Y)\psi=0,$$

thus associated with a smooth (!) right hand side. Therefore these functions  $\psi[\lambda]$  can be expanded at the angular point a in G: there exist coefficients  $\gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda]$  for any  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$  with Re  $\alpha > 0$  such that for any  $\boldsymbol{\xi} > 0$  there holds

$$\psi[\lambda](X,Y) = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha > 0 \\ \operatorname{Re}\alpha + n < \xi}} \gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda] \ R^{\alpha+n} \widetilde{\varphi}_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + \psi^{\xi}_{\operatorname{rem},a}[\lambda]$$
(6.1)

Here the angular functions  $\tilde{\varphi}_0[\alpha]$  coincide with the original  $\varphi[\alpha]$ , *cf* Lemma 2.1, and for  $n \geq 1$ , the  $\tilde{\varphi}_n[\alpha]$  are constructed from the  $\varphi[\alpha]$  by recurrence. On the other hand, the remainder  $\psi_{\text{rem},a}^{\xi}[\lambda]$  is such that<sup>§</sup>

$$\sup_{(X,Y)\in \mathbf{V}_{\mathbf{a}}} R^{-\xi} \left| \psi_{\text{rem},\mathbf{a}}^{\xi} [\lambda] \right| < \infty \,. \tag{6.2}$$

Multiplying (6.1) by  $\rho^{\lambda}$  and using that  $r = \rho R$ , we obtain

$$\rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda] = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha>0\\\operatorname{Re}\alpha+n<\xi}} \sum_{\substack{n\in\mathbb{N}\\ \alpha+n<\xi}} \rho^{\lambda-\alpha-n}\gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda] r^{\alpha+n}\widetilde{\varphi}_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + \rho^{\lambda}\psi^{\xi}_{\operatorname{rem},a}[\lambda].$$
(6.3)

But, as a consequence of the equation  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}(\lambda)\psi[\lambda] = 0$ , the function  $v[\lambda](\mathbf{x}) := \rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda]$  satisfies (4.1) with f = 0. Therefore, we have also the edge expansion (5.1) for  $v[\lambda]$ , i.e.

$$\rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda] = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha>0\\\operatorname{Re}\alpha+n<\xi}} \sum_{\substack{n\in\mathbb{N}\\ \alpha+n<\xi}} \partial^{n}_{\rho}\delta_{\alpha}[\lambda](\rho) \ r^{\alpha+n}\varphi_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + v^{\xi}_{\operatorname{rem},e}[\lambda] , \quad (6.4)$$

for some edge coefficients  $\delta_{\alpha}[\lambda]$ . For each fixed  $\rho$ , the remainders  $\rho^{\lambda}\psi_{\text{rem,a}}^{\xi}[\lambda]$  and  $v_{\text{rem,e}}^{\xi}[\lambda]$  are  $\mathcal{O}(r^{\xi})$ . Therefore we may identify the asymptotics (6.3) and (6.4) and obtain that

$$\delta_{\alpha}[\lambda](\rho) = \rho^{\lambda - \alpha} \gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda] \,. \tag{6.5}$$

$$\sup_{(X,Y)\,\in\,\mathrm{V}_{\mathrm{a}}} R^{-\xi+|\beta|} \big|\partial^{\beta}_{X,Y}\psi^{\xi}_{\mathrm{rem\,,\,a}}[\lambda]\big| < \infty\,.$$

<sup>(6.2)</sup> can be differentiated with respect to (X, Y), i.e. for any multi-index  $\beta \in \mathbb{N}^2$ , we have

#### 7. EDGE EXPANSION OF THE CORNER REMAINDER

In the previous section we have obtained the edge expansion of the singular terms  $\rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda]$  in the corner expansion (4.2). We may also expand along the edge e the remainder  $u^{\eta}_{\text{rem,c}}$ . Let  $\eta > -\frac{1}{2}$  be fixed.

Under Hypotheses 3.1, 4.1 and 5.1, there exist functions defined on e,  $\rho \mapsto d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}(\rho)$  for any  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$  with  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha > 0$  such that for any  $\xi > 0$  there holds in the conical neighborhood  $V_e$ :

$$\boldsymbol{u}_{\text{rem,c}}^{\boldsymbol{\eta}} = \sum_{\substack{\text{Re}\,\alpha>0\\\text{Re}\,\alpha+n<\xi}} \sum_{\substack{n\in\mathbb{N}\\\alpha+n<\xi}} \partial_{\rho}^{n} d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}(\rho) r^{\alpha+n} \varphi_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + u_{\text{rem,c,e}}^{\eta,\xi}$$
(7.1)

The coefficient  $d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}$  satisfies<sup>¶</sup>

$$\sup_{\rho \in (0,1]} \rho^{-\eta + \operatorname{Re} \alpha} |d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}(\rho)| < \infty \,. \tag{7.2}$$

The remainder  $u_{\text{rem,c,e}}^{\eta,\xi}$  satisfies

$$\sup_{\mathbf{x}\in B(\mathbf{c},1)} \rho^{-\eta+\xi} r^{-\xi} \left| u_{\text{rem},c,e}^{\eta,\xi}(\mathbf{x}) \right| < \infty.$$
(7.3)

Note that the above asymptotics is like expansion (5.1). The supplementary information is that the expansion of a term which is flat at the corner involves terms (edge coefficients and remainder) which are also flat at the corner.

¶(7.2) can be differentiated, i.e. for any integer  $k \in \mathbb{N}$ , we have

$$\sup_{\rho\,\in\,(0,1]}\rho^{-\eta+\operatorname{Re}\alpha+k}\big|\partial_{\rho}^{k}d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}(\rho)\big|<\infty\,.$$

 $\|$ (7.3) can be differentiated in any direction, i.e. for any multi-index  $\beta \in \mathbb{N}^3$ , we have

$$\sup_{\mathrm{x}\,\in\,\mathrm{B}(\mathrm{c},1)}\rho^{-\eta+\xi}r^{-\xi+|\beta|}\big|\partial_{\mathrm{x}}^{\beta}u_{\mathrm{rem}\,,\,\mathrm{c}\,,\,\mathrm{e}}^{\eta,\xi}(\mathrm{x})\big|<\infty\,.$$

#### **8.** CORNER EXPANSION OF THE EDGE COEFFICIENTS

By (6.3), (6.4) and (6.5) we obtain the edge expansion of the corner singularities in the form

$$\rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda] = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha>0\\\operatorname{Re}\alpha+n<\xi}} \sum_{\substack{n\in\mathbb{N}\\ \alpha+n<\xi}} \gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda] \,\partial_{\rho}^{n}(\rho^{\lambda-\alpha}) \,r^{\alpha+n}\varphi_{n}[\alpha](\theta) + \rho^{\lambda}\psi_{\operatorname{rem},e}^{\xi}[\lambda] \,.$$
(8.1)

Inputting edge expansions (8.1) and (7.1) into the corner expansion (4.2) and identifying with the edge expansion (5.1) we obtain that for any  $\alpha \in \mathfrak{A}$  with  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha > 0$  the edge coefficient  $d_{\alpha}$  expands as  $\rho \to 0$ , for any  $\eta > -\frac{1}{2}$ :

$$d_{\alpha}(\rho) = \sum_{-\frac{1}{2} < \operatorname{Re} \lambda < \eta} c_{\lambda} \gamma_{\alpha}[\lambda] \rho^{\lambda - \alpha} + d_{\alpha}^{(\eta)}(\rho)$$
(8.2)

with  $d^{\,(\eta)}_{lpha}(
ho)= \mathscr{O}\left(
ho^{\eta-\operatorname{Re}lpha}
ight).$ 

#### 9. CORNER-EDGE AND EDGE-CORNER EXPANSIONS OF SOLUTION

Neither the corner expansion (4.2) nor the edge expansion (5.1) have a remainder which is smooth at the corner and the edge at the same time. The "good" remainder is that of (7.1). Combining (4.2) and (7.1) we obtain the corner-edge asymptotics for any  $\eta$  and  $\xi$ :

$$u = \sum_{-\frac{1}{2} < \operatorname{Re} \lambda < \eta} c_{\lambda} \rho^{\lambda} \psi[\lambda] + \sum_{\operatorname{Re} \alpha > 0} \sum_{\substack{n \in \mathbb{N} \\ \operatorname{Re} \alpha + n < \xi}} \partial^{n}_{\rho} d^{(\eta)}_{\alpha} r^{\alpha + n} \varphi_{n}[\alpha] + u^{\eta, \xi}_{\operatorname{rem, c, e}}$$
(9.1)

٦

The edge-corner expansion is obtained by a re-combination of terms in (9.1) using (8.1) and (8.2): for any  $\boldsymbol{\xi}$  and  $\boldsymbol{\eta}$ ,

$$\boldsymbol{u} = \sum_{\substack{\operatorname{Re}\alpha > 0 \\ \operatorname{Re}\alpha + n < \xi}} \sum_{\boldsymbol{n} \in \mathbb{N} \atop \operatorname{Re}\alpha + n < \xi} \partial_{\rho}^{n} d_{\alpha} r^{\alpha + n} \varphi_{\boldsymbol{n}}[\alpha] + \sum_{-\frac{1}{2} < \operatorname{Re}\lambda < \eta} c_{\lambda} \rho^{\lambda} \psi_{\operatorname{rem}, \mathbf{e}}^{\boldsymbol{\xi}}[\lambda] + u_{\operatorname{rem}, \mathbf{c}, \mathbf{e}}^{\eta, \boldsymbol{\xi}}$$
(9.2)

**Remark 9.1** Note that expansion (9.1) is "canonical" from the point of view of the Mellin symbols  $\mathfrak{M}_{c}$  and  $\mathfrak{M}_{e}$ , since the original bases  $\psi[\lambda]$  and  $\varphi[\alpha]$  are present there. On the contrary, only the remainder terms of the bases  $\psi[\lambda]$  are present in expansion (9.2). But expansion (9.2) has the full edge coefficients, and not only their remainders as in expansion (9.1).

## **10. WHAT IS THE STRONGEST SINGULARITY?**

This question is somewhat illusive concerning expansions (9.1) and (9.2), since both corner and edge singularity have to be present in order to obtain a regular remainder. But concerning the expansion (8.2) of the edge coefficients, it makes sense to know if  $\operatorname{Re} \lambda - \operatorname{Re} \alpha$  is  $\geq 0$  or not.

We first remark that the weaker is the edge singularity, the larger is  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha$  and the smaller is  $\operatorname{Re} \lambda - \operatorname{Re} \alpha$ , which is an expression of the loss of regularity of the edge coefficient as  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha$  increases (in finite regularity theories).

But, in general, one is interested by the edge coefficients associated with the lowest value of  $\operatorname{Re} \alpha$ . We will give examples in crack theory, where the edge coefficients are of particular importance.

For  $\gamma \in (0, 2\pi)$  let the cone  $C_{\gamma}$  be defined as  $\mathbb{R}^3 \setminus \Gamma_{\gamma}$  where  $\Gamma_{\gamma}$  is the plane sector of opening  $\gamma$  contained in the plane y = 0 and with one of its sides equal to the line  $\{(0, 0, z), z > 0\}$ . Let  $G_{\gamma}$  be the section of  $C_{\gamma}$  on the sphere  $\mathbb{S}^2$ . The cone  $C_{\gamma}$  has two (similar) edges, and the coefficients along each of its edges have a similar asymptotics (8.2).

The edge exponents  $\alpha$  are the half-integers (general result from [4]), therefore the first one is  $\frac{1}{2}$ . Let  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  be the first corner exponent, that is  $\lambda \in \mathfrak{L}$  such that  $\operatorname{Re} \lambda > -\frac{1}{2}$  with least real part.

#### <u>Case when $L = \Delta$ </u>.

Then  $\lambda_1(\gamma) = -\frac{1}{2} + \sqrt{\mu(\gamma) + \frac{1}{4}}$  where  $\mu(\gamma)$  is the first eigenvalue of the Laplace-Beltrami operator on  $G_{\gamma}$  with Dirichlet conditions. By the monotonicity of Dirichlet eigenvalues,  $\gamma \mapsto \mu(\gamma)$  is an increasing function, therefore  $\gamma \mapsto \lambda_1(\gamma)$  is also increasing.

On the other hand, we know the values of  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  for particular values of the opening  $\gamma$ . For  $\gamma = \pi$ ,  $C_{\pi}$  is the wedge of opening  $\omega = 2\pi$ , and  $\lambda_1(\pi)$  coincides with the least edge exponent, i.e.  $\lambda_1(\pi) = \frac{1}{2}$ . We remark that, in this case the asymptotics (8.2) is degenerated (it is but a Taylor expansion) since the "corner" is now artificial.

As  $\gamma \to 0$ , the domain  $G_{\gamma}$  tends to the whole sphere  $\mathbb{S}^2$  and  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 0. As  $\gamma \to 2\pi$ , the domain  $G_{\gamma}$  tends to the union of two disjoint half-spheres and  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 1.

As a conclusion,

$$\lambda_1(\gamma) - \frac{1}{2}$$
 is < 0 if  $0 < \gamma < \pi$  and is > 0 if  $\pi < \gamma < 2\pi$ . (10.1)

#### Case when L is the elasticity operator.

Then, we still have (for similar reasons) that  $\lambda_1(\pi) = \frac{1}{2}$ , that  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 0 as  $\gamma \to 0$  and that  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 1 as  $\gamma \to 2\pi$  (the same still holds for  $\lambda_2$  and  $\lambda_3$ ). The monotonicity is known for isotropic materials in the region  $-\frac{1}{2} \le \lambda \le \frac{1}{2}$ .

#### **11. NEUMANN BOUNDARY CONDITIONS**

The definitions and results of sections 3.-9. can be extended to any boundary condition which covers the operator L. The Neumann condition is of particular interest in fracture mechanics and has special features.

When Neumann conditions are imposed, the corresponding edge and corner spectra  $\mathfrak{A}$  and  $\mathfrak{L}$  always contain  $\alpha = 0$  and  $\lambda = 0$  respectively corresponding to constant  $\varphi[\alpha]$  and  $\psi[\lambda]$ . The associated "singularities"  $r^{\alpha}\varphi[\alpha]$  and  $\rho^{\lambda}\psi[\lambda]$  are then constant too, therefore are regular.

Therefore, we may exclude these  $\varphi[\alpha]$  and  $\psi[\lambda]$  from the basis of singular functions. Then anything in expansions of §3.-9. goes in the same way *except* concerning the conditions on the different remainders. The Neumann remainders are the sum of a part which satisfies exactly the same "flatness" conditions than in (4.3), (5.2), (6.2) and (7.3), and a smooth part.

We may also discuss, like for Dirichlet conditions, what is the smallest between the first "useful"  $\alpha$  and  $\lambda$ . Let us consider the same example of the family of cracked cones  $C_{\gamma}$  for  $\gamma \in (0, 2\pi)$  and  $L = \Delta$ .

The first edge exponent is still  $\frac{1}{2}$ . As for the first corner exponents,  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$ , it is still given by the formula

$$\lambda_1(\gamma) = -rac{1}{2} + \sqrt{\mu(\gamma) + rac{1}{4}}$$

where  $\mu(\gamma)$  is now the first *non-zero* eigenvalue of the Laplace-Beltrami operator on  $G_{\gamma}$  with Neumann conditions.

Thanks to the special structure of the family  $\gamma \mapsto G_{\gamma}$  (the variation of the domains concern zero-measure sets), we still have a monotonicity property for Neumann eigenvalues, but in the converse direction than for Dirichlet:  $\gamma \mapsto \mu(\gamma)$  is a decreasing function, therefore  $\gamma \mapsto \lambda_1(\gamma)$  is also decreasing.

For the Neumann case, we also have that  $\lambda_1(\pi) = \frac{1}{2}$ .

As  $\gamma \to 0$ , the domain  $G_{\gamma}$  tends to the whole sphere  $\mathbb{S}^2$  and, as we have to remove the first (zero) Neumann eigenvalue,  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 1. As  $\gamma \to 2\pi$ , the domain  $G_{\gamma}$ tends to the union of two disjoint half-spheres. The bottom of the limit spectrum is double zero, corresponding to two (possibly different) constants on each half-sphere. Only one of them has to be removed, corresponding to equal constants. Therefore  $\lambda_1(\gamma)$  tends to 0.

The situation is then inverted with respect to Dirichlet conditions:

$$\lambda_1(\gamma) - \frac{1}{2} \text{ is } < 0 \text{ if } \pi < \gamma < 2\pi \text{ and is } > 0 \text{ if } 0 < \gamma < \pi.$$
(11.1)

### **12.** WITHOUT SIMPLIFICATIONS

- 1. If we do not assume hypotheses 3.1 and 5.1 any more, then we have to add a level of summation in all asymptotics for logarithmic terms  $r^{\alpha} \log^{j} r$  and  $\rho^{\lambda} \log^{k} \rho$ .
- If we assume only that the right hand side f is C<sup>∞</sup>(C) but without being zero near the corner c, then there are minor changes concerning the edge asymptotics (extra r<sup>α</sup> log<sup>j</sup> r terms appear for α ∈ N ∩ 𝔄). As for the corner asymptotics, in general it is necessary to consider N ∪ 𝔅 instead 𝔅, corresponding to homogeneous singular solution ρ<sup>|β|+2</sup>ψ<sub>β</sub> to problem (4.1) with right hand side x<sup>β</sup> for any β ∈ N<sup>3</sup>. And the remainders will be the sum of a flat part satisfying (4.3), (5.2), (6.2) and (7.3), and of a smooth part.
- 3. If f has a finite Sobolev regularity  $H^s$ , then the expansions are finite, the edge coefficients  $d_{\alpha}$  have finite Sobolev regularity depending on  $\alpha$  and s, and in order to have remainders with the correct regularity  $H^{s+2}$ , it is necessary to use special regularization of edge coefficients which act as lifting of traces from the edge to the cone.
- 4. If L has lower order terms but still constant coefficients, the structure of edge asymptotics requires a new level of summation since the order of derivation n of the edge coefficient  $d_{\alpha}$  is only  $\leq$  than the exponent shift (in the power of r) and no more equal. As for corner asymptotics, we have to add "shadow" terms  $\rho^{\lambda+n}\psi_n[\lambda]$ .
- 5. If L has a multi-order, the powers of r and  $\rho$  are multi-powers.
- 6. If L has variable coefficients, the corner expansion (4.2) still holds with the introduction of shadow terms, but the edge exponents will depend in general on  $\rho$  and they may cross each other or have branching points, which cause changes in the structure in edge asymptotics., see [2, 1, 3].

Endo-references for corner-edge asymptotics [6, Ch.16-17], exposed anew in [5, 7]. See also [9] and [8].

### REFERENCES

- M. COSTABEL, M. DAUGE. Construction of corner singularities for Agmon-Douglis-Nirenberg elliptic systems. *Math. Nachr.* 162 (1993) 209–237.
- [2] M. COSTABEL, M. DAUGE. General edge asymptotics of solutions of second order elliptic boundary value problems I & II. *Proc. Royal Soc. Edinburgh* **123A** (1993) 109–184.
- [3] M. COSTABEL, M. DAUGE. Stable asymptotics for elliptic systems on plane domains with corners. *Comm. Partial Differential Equations* nº 9 & 10 (1994) 1677– 1726.
- [4] M. COSTABEL, M. DAUGE. Crack singularities for general elliptic systems. Preprint 00-14, Université de Rennes 1 (2000).
- [5] M. COSTABEL, M. DAUGE. Singularities of electromagnetic fields in polyhedral domains. *Arch. Rational Mech. Anal.* **151**(3) (2000) 221–276.
- [6] M. DAUGE. Elliptic Boundary Value Problems in Corner Domains Smoothness and Asymptotics of Solutions. Lecture Notes in Mathematics, Vol. 1341. Springer-Verlag, Berlin 1988.
- [7] M. DAUGE. Singularities of corner problems and problems of corner singularities. In Actes du 30ème Congrès d'Analyse Numérique: CANum '98 (Arles, 1998), pages 19–40 (electronic). Soc. Math. Appl. Indust., Paris 1999.
- [8] V. A. KOZLOV, V. G. MAZ'YA, J. ROSSMANN. Spectral Problems Associated with Corner Singularities of Solutions to Elliptic Equations. Mathematical Surveys and Monographs, 85. American Mathematical Society, Providence, RI 2001.
- [9] S. A. NAZAROV, B. A. PLAMENEVSKII. *Elliptic Problems in Domains with Piecewise Smooth Boundaries*. Expositions in Mathematics 13. Walter de Gruyter, Berlin 1994.